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From:
Sent: Tuesday, 3 March 2020 9:40 PM
To: Health Ops
Cc: DGPRE Ufficio 3 Coordinamento USMAF-SASN
Subject: R: Australian NFP Notification - Part 1 of 2 (NIR #2238-203) [SEC=OFFICIAL]

Dear colleagues, 
thank you for the information provided. 
Best regards, 

 
 

 

 
 
Ministry of Health  
Directorate General for Health Prevention  

 
Chief, Office 3 –Coordination of Port, Airport and Border Health Offices 
IHR Contact Point. 
Sailors and air crew health care services – Coordination office. 
 
Viale Giorgio Ribotta, 5 - 00144 Roma 
ITALY 

 
 
 
Da: NGComms Per conto di Health.Ops@health.gov.au 
Inviato: martedì 3 marzo 2020 11:02 
A:   
Oggetto: Australian NFP Notification - Part 1 of 2 (NIR #2238-203) [SEC=OFFICIAL] 
 

 

Part 1 of 2 
Our Reference: NIR #2238-203 

Dear National IHR Focal Point of Italy 

The following is provided to you by the Australian National Focal Point (NFP) under Article 44 (Collaboration 
and Assistance) of the International Health Regulations 2005 (IHR). Information is supplied for public health 
follow up as you deem appropriate under your country's protocols and procedures. 
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Background 

The Australian NFP has been advised of a confirmed case of coronavirus who flew on an international flight 
while infectious. 

Flight Details 
Airline: Qatar Airways 
Flight: QR908 
Depart: Doha Hamad International Airport 22/02/2020 
Arrive: Sydney International Airport 23/02/2020 

Hazard Details / Clinical Details of Index Case 
 

 

 

Close Contacts 
The Australian NFP has identified close contacts in your jurisdiction. Details of close contacts are provided in a 
subsequent email. 

Personal Information 

This notification may include personal information supplied in accordance with the International Health 
Regulations 2005 (IHR). A record may be made of this information, or the information may be used or disclosed 
only for the purposes of assessing and managing a public health risk in accordance with and subject to the 
requirements of Article 45 of the IHR  

Personal information is supplied in a subsequent email. 

Please direct any enquiries regarding this case to health.ops@health.gov.au and quote the reference number 
NIR #2238-203. 

Warm regards 

Alicia Green 
 
for 
 
National Incident Room 
Australian IHR NFP 
Office of Health Protection 
Australian Government Department of Health 
 
t: (+61) 2 6289 3030 
f: (+61) 2 6289 3040 
health.ops@health.gov.au 
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Our telephone number is monitored 24 hours. Our email inbox is monitored during business hours and can be 
accessed by a duty officer after hours. Please call if your issue is urgent. 

This email has been issued to: Health Ops, NFP of Italy 
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From:
Sent: Monday, 9 March 2020 8:37 PM
To: Health Ops
Cc:  

Subject: [Caution Data in this email is protected - Not Virus Scanned] R: MSC Opera event 
information  [SEC=OFFICIAL]

Attachments: Australia.xlsx

Dear colleague, 
I am sorry for the delayed answer, we experienced some issues with our mail provider. 
Soon we will send the password to decrypt the file. 
Best regards 
 
 

  

 

 
 
MINISTERO DELLA SALUTE 
Direzione Generale della Prevenzione Sanitaria 
Sala Situazione USMAF 
Via Giorgio Ribotta, 5 - 00144 ROMA 
Tel. 06 5994 4460 - 06 5994 4469 
Mail : coordinamento.usmafsasn@sanita.it 
 
 

Da: Health Ops  
Inviato: venerdì 6 marzo 2020 21:15 
A:  

 

 
 

 
 

 
Cc:   
Oggetto: RE: MSC Opera event information [SEC=OFFICIAL] 
 
Dear Italian NFP  
 
Thank you very much for your email. We have not received any information about the MSC Opera. Please can you 
send any details of Australian citizens who may have been on the vessel and in contact with a confirmed COVID-19 
case. 
 
Respectfully 
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communication is strictly prohibited. If you receive this transmission in error please notify the author immediately 
and delete all copies of this transmission." 
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We ended up getting to Rome airport at 10 and stayed there until our flight at 10pm. We spent four hours in 
the lounge service that they have there. 

Please direct any enquiries regarding this case to health.ops@health.gov.au and quote the reference 

number NIR #2238-510. 

Warm Regards, 
 

National Incident Room 
Office of Health Protection 
Australian Government Department of Health 
Australian National IHR Focal Point 

T: (+61) 2 6289 3030 (24 hours) 
F: (+61) 2 6289 3040 
E: health.ops@health.gov.au 

Please note that this mailbox is monitored during normal business hours and can be accessed by a duty 
officer after hours. The telephone number listed above is monitored 24 hours. 

From: NGComms <apollo@id.ngcomms.net> On Behalf Of Health.Ops@health.gov.au 
Sent: Friday, 13 March 2020 11:51 AM 
To: Health Ops <Health.Ops@health.gov au> 
Subject: Australian NFP Notification (NIR #2238-510) [SEC=OFFICIAL] 

Part 1 of 1 

Our Reference: NIR #2238-510 

Dear National IHR Focal Point of Italy 

The following is provided to you by the Australian National Focal Point (NFP) under Article 44 

(Collaboration and Assistance) of the International Health Regulations 2005 (IHR). Information is 

supplied for public health follow up as you deem appropriate under your country's protocols and 

procedures. 

Background 

The Australian NFP has been advised of two new cases of COVID-19 
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Travel Itinerary
Travel Documentation
Trip A Deal

135 777
documentation@tripadeal.com.au

http://www.tripadeal.com.au

17 Day 2 For 1 Italy & The Med (2020) 2020-02-22 
-  Premium
Feb 22, 2020 - Mar 12, 2020
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Trip Summary

Important Information
Visa Information
Tour Group Coach Label
Managing your Airline Booking
MSC - Booking Reference & Instruction
MSC - Booking Reference 2
Australia - Rome, Italy
Which meals are included?

Welcome to Rome
Which meals are included?
iH Hotels Roma Z3

Rome City Tour
Which meals are included?
iH Hotels Roma Z3

Rome - Venice (approx. 520km day)
Which meals are included?
Novotel Venezia Mestre Castellana

Venice City Tour
Which meals are included?
Novotel Venezia Mestre Castellana

Venice - Milan (approx. 270km)
Which meals are included?
AS Hotel Dei Giovi

Milan - Florence (approx. 300km)
Which meals are included?
iH Hotels Firenze Business

Florence City Tour
Which meals are included?
iH Hotels Firenze Business

February 22 - Day 1 - Australia - Rome, Italy

February 23 - Day 2 - Welcome to Rome

February 24 - Day 3 - Rome City Tour

February 25 - Day 4 - Rome - Venice (approx. 520km day)

February 26 - Day 5 - Venice City Tour

February 27 - Day 6 - Venice - Milan (approx. 270km)

February 28 - Day 7 - Milan - Florence (approx. 300km)

February 29 - Day 8 - Florence City Tour

Page 2 of 25
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Florence - Rome (approx. 250km) - Begin 7 Night MSC cruise - Departs 6:00pm
Which meals are included?
MSC Grandiosa - Ocean View

Palermo - 10:00am to 5:00pm
Which meals are included?
MSC Grandiosa - Ocean View

Valletta, Malta - 9:00am to 6:00pm
Which meals are included?
MSC Grandiosa - Ocean View

At Sea
Which meals are included?
MSC Grandiosa - Ocean View

Barcelona, Spain - 9:00am to 6:00pm
Which meals are included?
MSC Grandiosa - Ocean View

Marseille, France 8:00am to 5:00pm
Which meals are included?
MSC Grandiosa - Ocean View

Genoa, Italy - 8:00am to 6:00pm
Which meals are included?
MSC Grandiosa - Ocean View

Arrive at 7:00am in Civitavecchia, Rome - Stay Behind Begins
Which meals are included?

 No Plans for This Day

Arrive in Australia

March 1 - Day 9 - Florence - Rome (approx. 250km) - Begin 7 Night MSC cruise - Departs
6:00pm

March 2 - Day 10 - Palermo - 10:00am to 5:00pm

March 3 - Day 11 - Valletta, Malta - 9:00am to 6:00pm

March 4 - Day 12 - At Sea

March 5 - Day 13 - Barcelona, Spain - 9:00am to 6:00pm

March 6 - Day 14 - Marseille, France 8:00am to 5:00pm

March 7 - Day 15 - Genoa, Italy - 8:00am to 6:00pm

March 8 - Day 16 - Arrive at 7:00am in Civitavecchia, Rome - Stay Behind Begins

March 11 - Rome, Italy - Australia

March 12 - Arrive in Australia

Page 3 of 25

Document 5

THIS D
UMENT H

AS BEEN R
ELE

ASED U
NDER 

THE FRE
OM O

F IN
FORMATIO

N ACT 19
82

 

BY TH

P
RTMENT O

F H
EALT

H 



THIS D
UMENT H

AS BEEN R
ELE

ASED U
NDER 

THE FRE
OM O

F IN
FORMATIO

N ACT 19
82

 

BY TH

P
RTMENT O

F H
EALT

H 



providing commentary, routing the tour, & seeing that people have a good time. They are a
licensed, qualified expert who supplies specific information on history, art, architecture &
culture of the city/village/attraction in which he or she is guiding the tour. The guide meets
the group at the required place & leaves the group at the end of the tour, they do not travel
with the group.
Tour Leader:
An experienced person tasked with ensuring the smooth operation of tours, as well as
providing practical support to passengers throughout the whole trip. Their role primarily
includes assisting with accommodation, transportation between locations, & communication
with tour guides in each stop. A tour leader may provide general guidance around a city or
village, & offer information on the place visited on the bus, however they are not required to
have specific knowledge on art, architecture, or history. They are not allowed to provide a
guided tour or commentary of a city/village/attraction once there & if caught doing so, can be
fined.
FLIGHTS
Airlines has the right to reschedule or cancel flights at anytime. Your flight e-tickets are correct at the time of ticketing,
however, it is your responsibility to contact the airline prior to travel to ensure that the scheduled departure time has not
changed so that you do not miss your flights. In the event of schedule changes or cancellations please speak with the
airline directly. If you know that you will be arriving into your destination later than planned & you have an arrival transfer
included, please call the tour operator emergency contact for advice. If in doubt about who to notify, please visit our support
page at support.tripadeal.com.au. 

As per our terms and conditions, in the event of a flight/ticket being rescheduled or cancelled, TripADeal is not able to
reverse this decision and the customer bears full responsibility for all costs or losses involved, including costs to re-book
flight tickets, and/or transfers/accommodation etc. to catch up with the tour. In these circumstances; no refunds or free of
charge alternate tour departure dates or other itinerary changes are permissible. In these instances, we recommend
keeping all documentation and receipts for insurance purposes.
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March 11 - Rome, Italy - Australia
No Plans For This Day
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From:
Sent: Tuesday, 17 March 2020 12:02 AM
To: Health Ops
Cc:  

Subject: [Caution Data in this email is protected - Not Virus Scanned] msc bellissima covid 
19  [SEC=No Protective Marking]

Attachments: AUSTRALIA crew.xlsx; Australia 29-6.xlsx

Dear colleagues of the NFP, 
 
attached to this mail are files containing information about your citizens that had strict contact with the 7 confirmed 
hosts of the cruise ship. 
To this mail will follow a second one with the password to decrypt the files. 
In case you will respond back to this mail please be sure to add the following e-mail address:  
 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 
MINISTERO DELLA SALUTE 
Direzione Generale della Prevenzione Sanitaria 
Sala Situazione USMAF 
Via Giorgio Ribotta, 5 - 00144 ROMA 
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LIST CREW OF ON BOARD HISTORICAL - MSC Bellissima - 07/03/2020 - 07/03/2020 
ID RANK SPECIFIC D.  FULLNAME - SEX B. DATE C. OF BIRTH RESIDENCE 

 
 

 
 

   
      

   
 

    
       

C. OF
NATIONALITY DOCUMENT E. PORT E. DATE D. DATE D. PORT REASON 

 Dubai 1/02/2020 ND ND 
 Dubai 15/02/2020 ND ND 
 Dubai 15/02/2020 ND ND 
 Dubai 15/02/2020 ND ND 
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From:
Sent: Friday, 20 March 2020 7:00 PM
To: Health Ops
Cc:
Subject: reference number NIR #2238-730 Ruby Princess  [SEC=No Protective Marking]

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

Dear colleagues of the NFP, 

thanks for the job done, we deeply appreciate your effort to empower the communication between states in this 
emergency. 
In order to conduct a decisive and feasible contact tracing in our -Country we may need some further information: 
- is the passenger still on board?
-what are the condition of our citizen (if provided);
- is she the only italian guest on board?

Kind regards 

On Behalf of . Ministry of Health - Italy 

 

 

 

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
Sent: Monday, 23 March 2020 6:20 PM
To: Health Ops
Cc:  

Subject: RE: Australian NFP Notification - Part 2 of 2 (NIR #2238-798) 
[SEC=OFFICIAL:Sensitive]

Attachments: nir-logo-i-t-l.png

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

Dear colleagues of the NFP of Australia, thanks for the notification, we will take all the necessary action. 
Respectfully, 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
    MINISTERO DELLA SALUTE 
 
Direzione Generale della Prevenzione Sanitaria 
 
        Sala Situazione USMAF 
 
    Via Giorgio Ribotta, 5 - 00144 ROMA 
 
       
 
   
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Da:  
Inviato: domenica 22 marzo 2020 12.57 
A:    
Cc: DGPRE Ufficio 3 Coordinamento USMAF-SASN 
Oggetto: I: Australian NFP Notification - Part 2 of 2 (NIR #2238-798) [SEC=OFFICIAL:Sensitive] 
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________________________________ 
Da: per conto di Health.Ops@health.gov.au [Health.Ops@health.gov.au] 
Inviato: domenica 22 marzo 2020 12.43 
A:  
Oggetto: Australian NFP Notification - Part 2 of 2 (NIR #2238-798) [SEC=OFFICIAL:Sensitive] 

[National Incident Room] 

Part 2 of 2 
Our Reference: NIR #2238-798 

Dear Italy 

Please find below and/or attached further information to support Part 1. 

Details of close contacts are attached. Please note the Australian NFP does not have further information regarding 
the status of these individuals. 

Please direct any enquiries regarding this case to health.ops@health.gov.au<mailto:health.ops@health.gov.au> and 
quote the reference number NIR #2238-798. 

Warm regards 

 

for 

National Incident Room 
Australian IHR NFP 
Office of Health Protection 
Australian Government Department of Health 

t: (+61) 2 6289 3030 
f: (+61) 2 6289 3040 
health.ops@health.gov.au<mailto:health.ops@health.gov.au> 

Our telephone number is monitored 24 hours. Our email inbox is monitored during business hours and can be 
accessed by a duty officer after hours. Please call if your issue is urgent. 

This email has been issued to: Health Ops, NFP of Italy 
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